TEXT OF THE SPIRIT WORD TO LIVE BY

(Revised Version, 2011)



PENTECOST CHURCH OF JESUS CHRIST, INC.

102 N. 13th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85034

Bishop Arthur Loring, Sr. Pastor

"The mystery that must be revealed"

WARNING

"When we are disobedient knowing what is right, we put ourselves in a position to be tempted by Satan and to receive a contrary and adversarial spirit."

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Wrong Spirits	1
The Church.	2
The Carnal Law	4
Sanctification-Make Holy	4
Spiritual Gifts	5
Key Scripture On Our Passover-Christ (Spiritual Communion)	5
Concerning the Sabbath Day	6
Prayer Proverbs and Remedies	7
Principles of Prayer	8
Hindrances to Prayer	8
A Believer's Rule of Conduct.	8
An Omen to the Family	9
Keys to Successful & Happy Marriage	10
Examination of Conscience	11

WRONG SPIRITS

"Behold, believe not every spirit, but try the spirits whether they be of God: because many false prophets are gone out into the world." **1 John 4:1**

- □ See **Numbers 22:1** Balaam
- □ Fruits of the Spirit- Galatians 5:22
- □ Works of the Flesh- Galatians 5:19

Beware... "wrong spirits" are all about us, so draw nigh to God with a pure heart and stay under the blood! Walk in the Spirit!

"Ye are of God, little children and have overcome them: because greater is he that is in you, than he that is in the world" (1 John 4:4).

Scriptures:

Deuteronomy 18:10; Leviticus 19:31; Leviticus 20:27; Mark 5:1; Acts 2; Galatians 5:22; Ephesians 5:18-20; 5:1-17;

I Thessalonians 5:22; James 1:12-16; II Peter;

I John 4:1-18

Various references to wrong spirits:

Spirit of the adversary evil spirit (or spirit of the enemy) vile spirit "Not right" spirit familiar spirit

Definitions

- 1. Satan-chief evil spirit (adversary of God/man) **Job 1:6 12**
- 2. Great dragon, serpent, devil, Satan-Revelation 12:7
- 3. Demon-evil spirit; evil passion or influence (wicked or cruel)
- 4. Satanic-extremely evil
- 5. Satanism-the worship of Satan or devil
- 6. D(evil)-supreme spirit of evil
- 7. Divination-attempt to foretell the unknown by mysterious means

Practiced by:

- 1. Magicians- Genesis 41:8
- 2. Witches- Exodus 22:18
- 3. Enchanters- **Deuteronomy 18:10**
- 4. Wizards- **Deuteronomy 18:11**
- 5. Necromancers-Deuteronomy 18:11; I Samuel 28:10
- 6. Charmers- Deuteronomy 18:11
- 7. Consulters-**Deuteronomy 18:11**
- 8. Diviners- **Deuteronomy 18:14**
- 9. Soothsayers- Isaiah 2:6

[&]quot;Abstain from all appearance of evil" I Thessalonians 5:22

- 10. Astrologers- Isaiah 47:13
- 11. False Prophets- Jeremiah 14:14
- 12. Cannot curse what God has blessed-Numbers 23:19

Some "wrong spirits"

Strife Disobedience Witchcraft Jealousy Hypocrisy Hatred Idolatry Deception Denial

Debaters Murders (John 8:44)

Drunkards Covetousness

Seeds of Discord (Proverbs 6:16-19)

THE CHURCH

(Godhead-Deity)

He is the head of the body, the Church: who is the beginning, the first born from the dead; that in all things he might have the preeminence.

Christ is the foundation, chief cornerstone and head of his church. He is head of the local church and He is head of the Church in its all-inclusive broader sense, including all born again, blood washed, spirit baptized believers in heaven and earth. For in Him dwelleth all the fullness of the Godhead bodily and is the head of all principality and power (Colossians 2:9).

He is the true eternal God, who was manifested in flesh (I Timothy 3:16).

Since it is impossible to be more than one God and anything that comes from God is God. He is God, Father, Son, Lord of lords, Holy Ghost, Master, Savior, Son of God, King of kings, Son of Man, Jehovah, the Word, the Way, the Truth, Alpha & Omega, Beginning and the end. Included in his very essence which is unending, He is Love, Peace, Joy, Power, Life, Light and only in Him do we live and have our being.

God is a Spirit, conceived his own son in the virgin Mary, thereby being His own Father, manifested himself in the flesh for the sole purpose to redeem man from the clutches of sin by His blood which He shed at Calvary.

The following scriptures provide witness of the Godhead bodily: (Note: In the body are many members—yet much more to be revealed that is not revealed as yet.)

- **Genesis 1:1; 1:26**
- **Exodus 6:3**

- **❖** Psalm 14:1
- ❖ Isaiah 7:10- Immanuel
- **❖ Isaiah 9:6**-*Mighty God, Everlasting Father*
- **❖ Isaiah 40:28**-The Everlasting God
- **❖** Isaiah 41:14, Isaiah 43:14-*The Redeemer*
- **❖** Isaiah 42:8-The Lord
- **Saiah 43:3, 43:11-***Thy Savior*
- **❖ Isaiah 43:15**-Your King
- **❖ Isaiah 44:6**-*First and Last*
- **!** Isaiah 45:5; Isaiah 45:15-*None like me*
- **❖ Isaiah 47:4**-*Our Redeemer*
- **❖ Isaiah 48:2 & 12**-*Lord of Host*
- ❖ Isaiah 66:7-Before she travailed...delivered man child
- **Zechariah 14:9-***One Lord, Name one*
- **❖ Matthew 1:18**-Conceived of Holy Ghost
- **❖ Matthew 1:21**-*Name Jesus*
- **Matthew 2:11-***Child was Worshipped*
- **Matthew 16:13-18**-The Christ (Anointed One)
- **Mark 12:29-30**-*God is one Lord*
- **Luke 2:21**-Named before conception
- **❖ John 1:1**-*The Word*
- ❖ John 8:12-59—Be Abraham; testified of himself
- ❖ John 12:45-Seeth me seeth him sent me
- **❖ John 13:3**-Came from God
- **❖ John 14:6-14**-*Way, Truth, Life*
- **❖ John 15:1**-*True Vine*
- **❖ John 8:42**-Came from God
- ❖ **John 17:1-5**-*Father glorified Son-Son in father*
- ❖ John 17:21-23-Father in Son-Son in Father
- **❖ John 5:43**-*Came in Father's Name*
- ❖ John 14:26-Comforter-Holy Ghost in His Name
- **❖ John 4:24**-God is Spirit
- ❖ **John 6:63**-Word is Spirit
- **Acts 2:36-** *Both Lord and Christ*
- **Acts 4:12-** *No other Name*
- ❖ I Corinthians 1:23- Power and Wisdom of God
- **❖ II Corinthians 5:19** *God was in Christ*
- **Ephesians 3:15**-Family in heaven & earth is named
- **Ephesians 4:4** One body, one Spirit, one hope, one Lord, one faith, one baptism, one God and Father of all.
- **Colossians 1:18** *Head of the Body*
- **Colossians 2:9-** *Fullness of the Godhead bodily*
- ❖ I Timothy 3:16- God was manifest in the flesh
- **Hebrews 1:1-8** *Son on the Throne*
- **\$ James 2:19-***One God (even the devils believe)*
- ❖ I John 1:5- God is Light
- ❖ I John 2:1- The Father, Jesus Christ, the true God
- ❖ I John 5:20- The true God
- * Revelation 22:13- Alpha & Omega

THE (CARNAL) LAW

- 1. Ten Commandments- Exodus 20:1, Deut. 5:7
- 2. For Israel's Generation-Exodus 31:12
- 3. Prophesied of Jeremiah 31:31
- 4. Christ Fulfilled Law- Matthew 5:17
- 5. Law until John-Luke 16:16; Matthew 11:13
- 6. Weak Through Flesh- Roman 8:1-8
- 7. Christ End of Law-Roman 10:4
- 8. No man Justified by law- Galatians 3:11; Roman 3:20
- 9. Fulfilled in One Word- Galatians 5:14
- 10. Purpose of Law- Galatians 3:19-24
- 11. Why it was added- Galatians 3:19
- 12. School Master- Galatians 3:24
- 13. Not for the Righteous Man I Timothy 1:9
- 14. Made Nothing Perfect- **Hebrew 7:19**
- 15. Was just a Shadow-Hebrew 10:1

Other Scriptures for Study

- 1. Matthew 27:51 & Luke 23:45
- 2. Acts 15:1-35
- 3. Book of Romans Chapter 1 through 10
- 4. II Corinthians 3:1-18
- 5. Hebrews Chapter 1 through 10

SANCTIFICATION-MAKE HOLY

- 1. **Leviticus 10:8** *Do not drink wine etc.*
- 2. **Numbers 6:1-** Nazareth to separate themselves unto the Lord & from wine and strong drink-sanctification
- 3. **Isaiah 1:16** Wash you make you clean. . .
- 4. **Jeremiah 1:5** *Sanctified in Womb* (See **Ezekiel 2:1-2; Isaiah 6:7; Daniel 1:8**—called and sanctified)
- 5. **Ezekiel 36:23-38**-- *I (Lord) sanctified in you*
- 6. **St. Luke 1:13-15**--*Drink neither wine nor strong drink*
- 7. **John 17:17** Sanctified through truth
- 8. **Acts 20:32**—Among them that are sanctified
- 9. **Roman 6:12-23**—Let not sin reign in you
- 10. **Roman 12:1**—Present your bodies holy
- 11. **Roman 15:16**--Sanctified by the Holy Ghost
- 12. **I Corinthians 1:2**—Sanctified and called to be saints
- 13. I Corinthians 6:9-20—But ye are sanctified
- 14. **I Corinthians 6:19-20**—Your body is Temple of the Holy Ghost
- 15. **I Corinthians 7:14**—Unbelieving husband & wife sanctifies by husband and wife

- 16. **II Corinthians 7:1**—cleanse filthiness of flesh & spirit.
- 17. Ephesians 5:25—Sanctified church
- 18. I Thessalonians 5:22-23--God will sanctify you wholly
- 19. **I Thessalonians 4:3--**Possess vessel in sanctification
- 20. **I Timothy 4:1-5**—Sanctified by word
- 21. I Peter 1:13-16—Be ye holy in all manner of conversation (all of your living—life)

SPIRITUAL GIFTS

- 1. **St. John 3:16**—*Christ was given*
- 2. Acts 2:38-39—baptism in the name of Jesus Christ
- 3. Acts 8:20—Cannot be purchased
- 4. **Roman 11:29**--Gifts & calling without repentance
- 5. **Roman 12:6**—*Gifts differ according to grace*
- 6. I Corinthians 12:1—Spiritual Gifts
- 7. **I Corinthians 13:1**—*Gifts of Prophecy compared*
- 8. **I Corinthians 14:1**—Desire spiritual gifts
- 9. **Ephesians 2:8**—God give grace
- 10. Ephesians 4:8—Christ gave gifts unto men
- 11. **I Timothy 1:6**—Neglect not the gift that is in you
- 12. **II Timothy 1:6**—Stir up the gift of God
- 13. **James 1:17**-Good & perfect gift from above

Other Scriptures for Study

- ***** Ezekiel 11:19
- **❖** John 10:28
- **❖** I Peter 5:10

**

Key Scriptures on Our Passover— Christ (Spiritual Communion)

- **Passover first instituted**—Exodus 12:1
- **♦ New Covenant**—Jeremiah 31:31
- **♦ Christ end of Law**—Matthew 5:17; Romans 10:4; Luke 16:1
- **Keys of Kingdom**—Matthew 16:19
- **Coming in His Kingdom**—Matthew 16:28
- **The cup He drinks**—Matthew 20:20
- **Eat bread in His Kingdom**—Luke **1**4:15; Luke 22:29
- **❖ Last Supper!** Matthew 26:17; Luke 22:1
- **❖ The cup is the New Testament**—Luke 22:20 & 42
- **❖ Kingdom appointed**—Luke 22:29
- **♦ Not of blood**—John 1:13
- ❖ I have meat to eat—St. John 4:32

- **♦ Meat to eat ye know not of**—John 4:32
- ❖ My meat is to do the will of Him... --St. John 4:34
- **The True Bread**—St. John 6:26-63
- **Comforter**—John 14:26; 14:17-18
- **❖** He's the true vine—John 15:1
- **The cup He drinks**—St. John 18:11
- **❖ Jesus' communion**—John 18:11
- **❖ Kingdom not meat and drink**—Roman 14:17
- **❖ Not good to drink wine**—Roman 14:21
- **❖ Ye are the temple**—I Corinthians 3:1
- **❖ Kingdom not in word**—I Corinthians 4:20-21 **Christ our Passover**—I Corinthians 5:7
- **Circumcism ---**Philippians 3:3; I Corinthians 7:18
- **❖ Spiritual Rock**—I Corinthians 10:1
- **Cause divisions**—I Corinthians 11:17
- **Sower ministers bread for your food**—II Corinthians 9:10
- **Law was school master**—Galatians 3:23
- **Born under the law**—Galatians 4:1-5
- **Blotting out of ordinances**—Colossians 2:14-23
- **❖ Old Tabernacle**—Hebrews 9:8
- **Testament in force after death**—Hebrews 9:15-28
- **Prophets desire to know--**I Peter 1:10
- **The true last supper**—Revelation 19:9

CORNCERNING THE SABBATH DAY

Jesus was accused of not keeping the Sabbath day. When studying and seeking to understand the mysteries and to know and teach doctrine as set forth in the word of God, one must remember that it can only be received by revelation through the Holy Ghost. All of the mysteries of the Godhead, so called, have to be received in its entirety. As we follow on to know the Lord, we must not try to fragment God and compare Him to man. We cannot limit God. The reference to keeping the Sabbath, being baptized in Jesus name, being filled with the Holy Ghost, keeping of carnal ordinances as washing feet, carnal communion, (a.k.a. Lord's Supper) and other controversial subjects, such as women in the church, etc., much be known and understood in the spirit word.

The law was a schoolmaster to bring us to Christ. After the first man failed (Adam), it took many generations and experiences by righteous men through faith in an effort to re-establish and restore man back into true fellowship with God (**Matthew 11:13**). "The Law and the prophets were until John: since that time the kingdom of God is preached, and every man presseth into it" (**Luke 16:16**).

The preeminent Christ is reflected in Colossians 1:14-22; 2:6:23. The Sabbath Day was made for man and not man for the Sabbath (Mark 2:27 & St. Luke 6:1-10). Son of man is the Lord also of the Sabbath (St. Luke 6:5) Looking at St. John 5:1-16, many will preach about the man healed at the Bethesda Pool, but seem to overlook the fact that this was done on the Sabbath. They failed to understand the *purpose* of the Sabbath, *when* it was instituted, *why* it was instituted and that when Jesus came he established a new covenant with the house of Israel.

The new covenant brought an end to the first covenant which was "first earthly." **St. Luke 17:20-21** informs us that the Kingdom of God cometh not with observation, neither shall they say lo here (is

Christ), lo there (is Christ) for behold the Kingdom of God is within you. To fully receive the true Sabbath and to keep it or to remain in it, requires one to live a life acceptable to God. To do that, takes a lifetime, which means that we have to continue in Him.

To fully bring out the essence of the "Godhead mystery" requires preaching and teaching from Genesis to revelation and it cannot be written out.

One must first believe that He is! (He is God as revealed in Isaiah 9:6 and Hebrews 1:1, etc.)

- □ **He is the True Word-**John 1:1
- □ **He is the True Bread-**John 6:26-63
- □ He is the True Door (Shepherd, Light, only Father, Son, Spirit, Water)-John 10:1-9
- ☐ **He is the True Way-**John 14:6
- □ He is the True Vine-John 15:1

He is the Creator and Maker of all things, the first and the last, etc. The Lord rested on the Sabbath Day when He finished His work or creation.

The children of Israel were required to keep it throughout their generations. Thank God we are now in the generation of Jesus Christ. We will rest from our labor when we finish our work (**Hebrews 4:1-11**).

Therefore let no man judge you in respect of a holy day, or new moon or Sabbath days, which are a shadow of things to come, but the body is Christ, **Colossians 2:16-17.**

The following scriptures should be helpful in further study of this endless subject:

Genesis 2:1-3; Exodus 12:1; Exodus 16:22-30; Exodus 31:12; Exodus 20:8; Nehemiah 9:14-17; Matthew 12:1-8; Mark 2:27; St. Luke 6:5-11; St John 7:14-31; St John 9:16 shows Jesus being accused of not keeping the Sabbath; Colossians 2:14-23; Romans 7:1-7; Hebrews 3:4 4:1-16 and Hebrews 8:6-13.

PRAYER PROVERBS AND REMEDIES

- 1. The first purpose of the prayer is to move the prayer.
- 2. Consistent prayer brings faith, boldness, and a quiet confidence in God.
- 3. Prayer should not begin with a list of what we want but with praise and thanksgiving.
- 4. The best form of spiritual exercise is to touch the floor regularly with your knees.
- 5. Prayer is God's answer for every crisis in life.
- 6. Our prayers may be short circuited by sin.
- 7. No person is any greater than his prayer life.
- 8. Prayer is a command of God.
- 9. God answers our prayers but He also changes our attitudes.
- 10. When we stop praying we do not stay close to God.
- 11. Christians never outgrow their need for prayer.
- 12. God sometimes says no, not yet, No, I love you too much.
- 13. Even while doing our daily task a prayer can be in our hearts.
- 14. PRAYER MEETS THE CHALLENGE.

PRINCIPLES OF PRAYER

- 1. Pray with a clean heart
- 2. Pray earnestly
- 3. Renounce your own will to God's
- 4. Pray in Jesus name
- 5. Pray in faith, believing
- 6. Pray with an attitude of praise for who He is and what He has done for you.
- 7. Pray about His greatness, His power, His great love, His protection--be thankful for all things.

HINDRANCES TO PRAYER

When prayers are not answered, you should examine yourself in the light of God's Word. If you find anything not pleasing to God, confess it, believing God for forgiveness that your prayers may be answered (**I John 1:9**).

- An unharmonious relationship between husband and wife will hinder prayer (I Peter 3:7).
- > Selfishness will hinder prayer (**James 4:3**).
- An unforgiving spirit will hinder prayer (Matthew 5:22, 24).

Many Christians go without answers to prayer because they have wronged others, or have been wronged, and have failed to humble themselves and seek reconciliation.

- ➤ Unbelief will hinder prayer (James 1:6, 7 & Hebrews 11:6)
- ➤ Known sin in the heart will hinder prayer (**Isaiah 59:1, 2 and Psalm 66:18**). When you pray, go to God in all humility. Ask Him to reveal anything in your life that is not pleasing to Him. Then judge it, calling it by name, and forsake it. Pray in all simplicity and earnestness, believing, and God will hear and answer.

A BELIEVER'S RULE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with the word of God, the Pentecost Church of Jesus Christ, International, endeavors to preach, teach, and maintain a standard of holiness and righteous living which includes a standard of dress and holy conversation, avoiding worldly amusements and unwholesome activities.

We teach and admonish our people that inward holiness is reflected outwardly in modesty and to be exemplary in our deportment.

We are taught and are against members indulged in activities which are not conducive to godly living such as: theaters, dances, mixed swimming and bathing, make-up, coloring of hair, apparel that immodestly exposes the body, worldly sports and amusements, unwholesome radio programs and music. In addition, due to the vast display of gross immorality and evils of the day, television in

our homes is not recommended. Further, we disapprove of school students attending shows, dances, dancing classes, engaging in school and community activities that are not holy or do not lead to holiness.

"The woman shall not wear that (garments) which pertaineth unto a man, neither shall a man put on a woman's garment: for all that do so are abominations unto the Lord thy God" (Deuteronomy 22:5). We ask that ladies wear appropriate dresses or skirts and men wear pants.

We are warned by Jesus in the Gospels concerning the evil abomination of desolation which also includes tattoos, body piercing, and many other heathenisms and pagan practices cause by Satanism and demonic spirits.

It is clearly set forth in the word of God to reframe from such things and allow them not into the congregation.

AN OMEN TO THE FAMILY

The Current secular style of family values, methods of living, and mannerisms for administering the raising of children is to "do it like you want to do." Whether it's the mother at home to care for the children while the father is off to work or both mother and father are off to work and children are left at home alone to raise themselves, or left with babysitters which may consist of an adolescent/teenager, a caring grandmother, relative, neighbor, friend, or who knows who.

A fickle state of change is the switch to the father left at home to act as mother and the mother off to work to assume the role of a father. These are just a few of the varied methods so employed today in a supposedly intellectual society. This without a doubt will lean to a more dehumanizing society.

No one seems prepared to take the blame or be held accountable for the product that continues to come out our homes.

It seems that the blame or reason for the lack of success for a better product coming out of our homes, is charged to negative influences, poor schooling, improper funded school systems, moral breakdown in society and a cadre of other schemes in governments, national, state and local justice systems, and all religious orders.

When we have such massive dosages of crime, pornography, and other insidious display or unwholesome viewing on televisions etc. It seems but a small wonder that our children are in a state of confusion.

There seems to be very little common moral or ethnical values available by which our children can pattern their lives. It seems like many are in a state of denial with some deceptive and false optimism that things will get better without an agenda to identify and rectify the deficiencies.

Reflecting back on what we might say were better times, since it is said that the generation of which I am a descendant, survived through the residue of 1930 depression and four or five major military conflicts. Time has definitely changed. With a vast array of changing technology that we are experiencing daily, things are different for all mankind. I think that too often we try to brush over our past for fear of returning to it. Our history will support the fact that the family structure is not the same.

The following provides a solution of which is obviously unacceptable:

- The wise man Solomon has said, "the fear of the Lord is the beginning of knowledge . . ." (**Proverbs 1:7**).
- "Where there is no vision, the people perish: but he that keepeth the law, happy is he" (**Proverbs 29:18**).
- "Trust in the Lord with all thine heart; and lean not unto thine own understanding" (**Proverbs** 3:5).
- The Lord admonished "if my people, which are called by my name, shall humble themselves, and pray, and seek my face, and turn from their wicked ways; then will I hear from heaven, and will forgive their sins, and will heal their land"(II Chronicles 7:14).

The following is the sure and only solution as was spoken by Apostle Simon Peter when the day of Pentecost was fully come. "Repent and be baptized everyone of you in the name of Jesus Christ for the remission of sins and ye shall receive the gift of the Holy Ghost" (Acts 2:38).

The product of society as it relates to the family is obvious in homes that are fatherless and/or motherless etc. and are in majority of instances headed by a female.

KEYS TO A SUCCESSFUL AND HAPPY MARRIAGE

Marriage is as old as the family of man. It was instituted by Jehovah God in the Garden of Eden.

Rightly regarded, marriage is the highest and happiest of human relationships, the preserver of true love, and the foundation of the home.

The key attributes to sustain and maintain a good marriage and home are: love, prayer, respect, faithfulness, trust, and due benevolence.

As we are instructed in the word of God, "wives submit yourselves unto your own husbands as unto the Lord. Husbands love your wives, even as Christ also loved the church and gave himself for it" (**Ephesians 5:22-28**).

Utmost importance is that your belief and faith in God are the same, because a house divided against itself shall not stand. You are hereby admonished to stay true to God, and He will bless your whole marriage always.

EXAMINATION OF CONSCIENCE

- 1. Do you read the word of God for help?
- 2. Do you habitually miss your daily prayer and consecration?
- 3. Are you ashamed of your belief?
- 4. Do you use the name of God in vain?
- 5. Do you curse or use bad words?
- 6. Do you go to your own church service weekly?
- 7. Do you obey your parents in the Lord?
- 8. Are you unkind to others?
- 9. Do you quarrel with others?
- 10. Do you cause others to quarrel?
- 11. Do you take pleasure in improper stories?
- 12. Do you willingly listen to improper stories?
- 13. Do you yourself tell them?
- 14. Do you commit immodest actions, with yourself or with others?
- 15. Do you steal?
- 16. Do you tell lies?
- 17. Do you talk uncharitably about others?
- 18. Do you keep your soul and body Holy and Sanctified?
- 19. Do you obey your Church Government?
- 20. Do you attend and finance your church?
- 21. Do you visit the sick?
- 22. Are you carrying something in your heart against someone?

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, when the Day of Pentecost was fully come, they were continuously in the Temple, and went from house to house as well as wherever the Holy Ghost led them "daily" not just on the Sabbath (Acts 2:46).

In Heaven, they are continuously and forever praising and blessing God, not just on the Sabbath or one day a week. He is the same yesterday, today, and forever. You can even have the Sabbath (Holiness) at midnight, morning and evening or as you will. When people talk about the Kingdom come or Kingdom here on earth, refer them to St. Luke 17:20 and that Heaven and earth shall pass away and that Jesus has a place prepared for them that love Him.

Bishop Arthur Loring

Even so, come Lord Jesus!